
- • 
JOINT MEETING 

SENATE FINANCE CCM-11'.ITEE 
ASSEMBLY WAYS AND MEANS 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
JANUARY 24, 1977 

The rreeting was called to order at 8:00 a.rn. 

Senator Floyd R. Lamb was in the chair. 

PRESENT: 

OI'HERS: 

Senator Floyd R. Lamb, Chairman 
Senator James I. Gibson, Vice-Chainuan 
Senator Eugene v. Echols 
Senator Norman Ty Hilbrecht 
Senator Norman Glaser 
Senator Thanas R. C. Wilson 
Senator C. ClLifton Young 
Assemblyman Donald R. Mello, Chainuan 
Asseroblyman Douglas Brenner 
Assemblyman Eileen B. Brookman 
Asseroblyman Alan Glover 
Asseroblyman Thanas J. Hickey 
Assemblyman James N. Kosinski 
Asseroblyman Dean Rhodes 
Asseroblyman John M. Vergiels 
Assemblyman John Serpa 
Asseroblyrnan Melvin Heward 

Ronald W. Sparks, Chief Deputy Fiscal Analyst 
John Dolan, Chief Deputy Fiscal Analyst 
Bill Flangas, Chairman Public Works Board 
Dick Baker, State Public Works Board 

• 

Bill Hancock, Secretary Manager,State Public Works Board 
Bill Bible, Deputy Budget Administrator 
Heward Barrett, Budget Director 
Cy Ryan, UPI 

Mr. Flangas explained the projects under consideration were according to 
priority. The concern for the entire process was to listen carefully to 
what state agencies felt they needed, look at the governrrent projects 
and seperate what they must have and what would be nice to have. They 
labored under the presumption of a ten million dollar ceiling. 

Mr. Hancock said in the Capital Improvement Budget, other than projects 
recamended, there is an analysis of hew the Capital Improvanent Program 
has been fun::l.ed for the last ten years and hew it is being recarmer:ded 
D.CM. It gives an :iLmllex of building aai construction costs and emphasizes 
projected costs that are inflated by 6% a year until the beginning of 
construction. There is priority on ninty projects with the first forty-six 
projects already approved. The Governor recCTCirerrls a major rehabilitation 
of t-Bximurn Security Prison, two new etmnunity Cblleges and the improvement 
of Macky Stadium for a total cost of $71,516,000. Mr. Hancock said this 
-~,._increase of 116% over what it was in 1975. 

Mr. Hancock said one major factor in the Governor's program is a five year 
allocation of NECC funds as opposed to the historic rnethcrl of four years. 
There is an annual five million a year fran the slot machine tax. 
Mr. Hancock said the HECC funds should total $22,211,000. 

77-45: Housing Unit No. 5, Northern Nevada Correctional Center 
Carson City, Nevada 
Project total= $1,762,000 

For Project descriptions, see page 780-792 in the Executive Budget. 



- -
SENATE FINANCE CCM1ITI'EE 
MINUI'ES OF MEETING 

PAGE 2 

S.B. 50: 

• -

Contains appropriations for project 77-45, 77-46 and 77-22. 
Mr. Hancock said the Governor wanted project 77-45 funded early. If 
this project is funded it would be necessary to fund 77- 2, which is 
the rrechanical boiler plant which is necessary to have the project 
function. 

Senator Lamb asked the need of this function. 

• 

Mr. Hancock stated it serves two purposes: Additional housing capacity 
for irnnates and giving the segregational ability where if you get a problem 
at M3xirrn.mt Security Prison or Medirrn.mt Security Prison, you have sare place 
to transfer the trouble makers out of this particular area. 

~.,Hain<l:!ock:mentrl.dnaft.:, thehousing capacity figures on the 18th of January: 

Medium Security - 500 il1ffi:l.tes 
M3xirrn.mt Security - 402 irnnates 
Warens Prison - 48 il1ffi:l.tes Total= 950 irnnates 

77-46: Expand Southern Nevada Correctional Center, Jean 
Project total= $3,212,000 

For project descriptions, see page 780-792 in the Executive Budget. 

Senator Lamb asked if this was over and above what was planned? Mr.Hancock 
said no, it is exactly what was planned. 

Senator Lamb asked what changes were ma.de. Mr. Hancock said changes in 
the physical facility. He stated improvem:mts were made in the security 
of the wind~s and the bars. He said the Interim Finance Ccmni ttee approved 
the secorrl perimeter fence and security lighting. 

Senator Lamb asked if there was an additional increase of irnnates fran 
250 to 350? 
Mr. Hancock said yes. 

Senator Lamb asked what type of prisoner is going to be houserl:Li.n-,Jeao.. 

Mr. Hancock said medium and minirrn.mt security prisoners. He said there 
is a diagnostic reception center with 50 lock-up cells which is primary 
for a reception area to bring a person in and have them analyzed. Accord­
ing to the Warden, no one should be in the Maxirrn.mt Security Reception Unit 
for rrore than three weeks. 

Assemblyman Brookman asked Mr. Hancock if he had spoken to Peter S:uron 
about this matter. 
Mr. Hancock said he spoke to him last week. He said Mr. S:uron said there 
was concern that there was a higher security risk and what he told his 
banker is that it might not materialize. He said the Warden assured him 
that the same sort of irnnate that was talked about originally, is still 
planned, that the state is in a safe position, that we have title to the 
property. Mr. Hancock said we are relying on :Mr. S:uron for the water and 
sewage. He said if the state wants to put its ~ water and sewage in, 
we can forget about Peter S:uron. We have $500,000 of Peter S:uron' s rroney 
in the bank, I don't think the rules have changed a bit. 

Assemblyman Mello said there were two hearings on this. The prisoners 
that were to be placed out there were those that could be bused to Clark 
County areas and put to work. The rules we talk about n~ aren't the 
rules we talked about then a.rd he sees a change. 

Mr. Hancock said the only thing that has changed is the locks on the doors 
and the wirrl~s. 

dmayabb
WMfin

dmayabb
Text Box
January 24, 1977



- -
SENATE FINANCE CCM1ITI'EE 
MINUI'FS OF MEETING 

PAGE 3 

• - • 
Senator Lamb said when we talk about hard core prisoners, are you talking 
about prisoners at Jean? 

Mr.Hancock said he didn't knew what he meant by hard core prisoners. 
Senator Lamb said people that should be in the Maximum Prison. 
Mr. Hancock said no,there are no Maximum Security Prisoners at Jean, accord­
ing to.e the Warden. Mr. Hancock said they are youthful offenders, 
medimum/minimum security risks. He said there is no maximum security 
at Jean,for a permanent lock up situation. 

Senator Hilbrecht asked Mr. Hancock what happened to a plan,projecting 
receipt of federal funding? 

Mr. Hancock said the state sul:mitted under the Federal Public Works Act, 
Title I of the Federal Public Works Act, tM) applications for prison 
facilities. The first was the fifth housing unit at M:rlimum Security 
Prison. It was rejected according to his understanding because it \f,X)Uld have 
put the M:rlimum Security Prison over the 400 inmate capacity that was 
recarmended by LEM.. Mr. Hancock said the second was the expansion of the 
Southern Nevada Correctional Center which is a 3.2 million dollar project. 

Senator Hilbrecht asked if this was because of any changes in criteria. 
Mr. Hancock said not that he knew of. 

Senator Wilson asked if this facility was suppose to be administered as 
a clearing facility. He wanted to knew if they \f.X)Uld all be processed 
through this facility and distributed to other facilities around the state. 

Mr. Hancock said we are basically talking about diagonistic capabilities. 

Senator Wilson said there has been a continuing probl6tl over the years with 
CltJ.i:m:.inal.J,.yj.i:insame,~. He asked if this facility was going to treat this 
need. Senator Wilson assumed this person \f,X)Uld go to this diagonistic 
center as well and undergo :i!Ul evaluation and then \f,X)ndered what \f,X)uld 
becare of this person. 

Assemblyman Vergiels said he understands that the way in which the 50 cells 
are being constructed, if the person ccmnits murder, this is just a holding 
area until it is convenient to send him up north. Assemblyman Vergiels 
asked if this would actually be a diagonistic center. 

Mr. Flangas said there will be a limited minimum/maximum security area for 
the housing of an inmate for a very short period of time until a determination 
can be made. It is not presumed to be an area that will be full all the time. 
Mr. Flangas said these people won't be part of their regular population. 

Assemblyman Br6tlner asked if the original plan was to increase the 
maximum capacity fran 250 to 350 inmates. 

Mr. Hancock said the original master plan was for 350 inmates. He said the 
LEM. has a mystical figure of 400 and this particularly under the master 
plan. 

Assemblyman Bremner recalled there was a request for a minimum /maximum 
security instibltion for 250 inmates. He asked Mr. Hancock if he had 
planned on getting this under federal rroney and if this was so, is this 
why he was asking for 350 inmates now. 

Mr. Hancock said the 350 inmates was established in the original master 
plan. The 1975 :fl..egislablre funded the first phase which is new. 

Senator Lamb said lets rephrase the question and speak strickly in regards 
to the building and its cost and changes to be made. 

Senator Hilbrecht asked if thed:inal,:phaise.dif~:thec:fae'il.hfr¥ was:~l:a,:;cd 
on the present master plan or are there additional units planned. 

dmayabb
WMfin

dmayabb
Text Box
January 24, 1977



- -
SENATE FINANCE COMv1ITI'EE 
MINUrFS OF MEETING 

PAGE 4 

• - • 
Mr. Hancock said as far as this particular activity, it works as a unit. 
The land area we have acquired is 90 acres of Peter Sim:ms' , plus 480 acres 
of BIM property. 

Senator Hilbrecht was disturbed by this and wanted to knCM if there was 
another planned facility. 

Mr. Hancock said there is nothing planned at this stage and tilre. 

Senator Iamb asked what would happen if there was an expansion. 

Mr. Hancock said the general attitude of the prison people is that you 
can't have two institutions in such close proximity to one another. In 
essence, it would be functioning aas' ... :u one big'..institutioni,S' Hei.said 
problems in one institution 'M'.)Uld be carried over to the other. They 
reccmnerrl a 50 mile seperation. Mr. Hancock said he considers it to be 
renote to have another institution dCMn in the south at this tilre. 

77-Gl: Rem:xiel Nevada State Prison, Carson City, Nevada 

Mr. Hancock said this project will accanplish the canplete renovation of 
the existing old building. Also included is a new 102 man living unit 
similar to the rrost recent at Northern Nevada Correctional Center, a new 
administration building and a new vocational shop building. If Legislature 
decides, instead of renovating maximum, to construct an entirely new 
maximum facility, it is reccmnended that this appropriation be used for 
the first phase of that new facility. 

Mr. Hancock said a new institution 'M'.)uld cost close to 13 million dollars. 
Mr. Hancock feels that the Maximum Security Prison has about 70% 
of the structure which is capable of being renodeled. 

Mr. Hancock included in the project, $25,000 which is allocated for 
an overall plan not yet developed. Mr. Hancock said they have a study 
that was done in 1973 and are convinced of what can be salvagErl. There 
is 44,000 square feet of old structure that is suitable for nroernization. 
The central heating system, kitchen and dining facilities and shops are 
all useable at the facility. The land area the state CMns is 160 acres. 
The only way we reccmrend you walk away frc:m that facility, is if you becane 
convinced you do not want a Maximum Security Prison in Carson City. 
Fran an econanic point of view, it seems you should get rid of the obsolete 
part and build up the new. 

Assemblyman Glovers said he was not sure if any rrore rroney should be put 
into the old, and end up being like the State Hospital, eventually tearing 
it dCMn. The area has water problems and new hanes are being built around 
it. Ib we want a prison right in the middle of all of this? I'm 
not sure we should put anymore rroney into the old building, even though 
part can be saved. 

Mr. Hancock said the buildings that 'M'.)Uld be saved is the kitchen and the 
dining hall which are seperate structures. The eastern and southern part 
of the Maximum Security Prison which is a Maximum Security unit, is approx-­
imately twenty years old. The old part is the shaped building next to 
5th Street. Part of this can be reused. Part will have to cane out. 
Mr. Hancock said the old cell Block "A" will have to cane out too. 

Assemblyman Mello said you are talking about 8.5 million dollars. 
Maybe we could build a prison to house the same type of prisoners we 
are talking about with approximately the same amount of rroney if not a 
little bit rrore, and sell the prison. 

Mr. Hancock said our estimate for a 250 man, new Maximum Security Prison 
Institution, is around 13 million dollars. 

dmayabb
WMfin

dmayabb
Text Box
January 24, 1977



- -
SENATE FINANCE CCMITTI'EE 
MINUTES OF MEETING 

PAGE 5 

• - • 
Assemblyman lf.ello said we will be looking at other areas of tearing dCMn 
and building again, for it never errls. 

Assemblyman Brookman asked if the heating or cooling in the dining area 
is just heating and no air? 

Mr.Hancock said it is ventilation. 

Senator Lamb asked if there was ever any thought about butting a couple 
of jack hanmers and rock saws and putting sare of these :people to v.0rk? 

Mr. Hancock said the state bought a rock saw back in the late 50's. 

Senator Lamb said he would like to see a work program for all prisoners. 

Mr. Flangas said there has been oonv.ersation about denolishing the prison 
and starting all over. There are sane advantages in planning a facility 
fran the bottan up, but you will have to consider a :minirrn.nn figure of 
13 million dollars and that wouldn't be enough. 

Mr. Flangas said we are looking to rrodernize and renovate that portion 
to be salvageable unless you are willing to carmit 15 million dollars, 
we should be looking to renovate the present structure. 

Senator Lamb said we are getting into the area of making a country club 
out of our prison. 

Mr. Flangas said the state has the responsibility of the safety and security 
of that prisoner. We have the responsibility to the public that the prisoner 
remains in the confines of that wall until such time as he is released. 
My concern as a citizen, is that the bad guy remain behind those walls once 
he is confined. 

Assemblyman Brookrran asked what Mr. Hancock said about the land contiguous 
to it on the east. 
Mr.H~ksaaid.Jthlere is 100 undeveloped acres and it is state CMned. 

Assemblyman Hickey said regarding a new facility verses an old facility; 
has the rna.intance cost been taken into consideration and the employees 
necessary to handle the inmates. 

Mr. Hancock said conceivable yes, less operational cost and salary cost. 
Mr. Hancock said we are talking abOut cutting the cost since this institution 
v.0uld handle 250 inmates as opposed to today of sane 400. 

77-21: Inprovements at the Northern Nevada Correctional Center, Carson 
City, Nevada. 

For project descriptions, see page 781 of the Executive Budget. 

Mr. Hancock said the last session of the 11.egislature we asked for $75,000 based 
on the cities estirna.te to connect this facility to the Carson City sewage 
systan. You gave us 90% of that or $67,000 and the estimate by the city 
is closer to $90,000. 

77-3: Classrocm addition, Waren'$. Correctional Center, Carson City 

For project descriptions, see page 781 of Executive Budget. 

Mr. Hancock said this is another aspect of walking away fran the Maximum 
Security Prison. We do have the wanens prison that is a relatively new 
facility built within the last ten or twelve years. One must consider 
what would be done with this. 

dmayabb
WMfin

dmayabb
Text Box
January 24, 1977



- -
SENA'IE FINANCE CCM,ITTI'EE 
MINUI'ES OF MEETING 

PAGE 6 

• - • 
Senator Echols asked why is the cost so high for these structures canpared 
to high rise hotels? 

Mr. Hancock said there is an addition of 30% to contractors cost because of 
the danger in working arourxl and within an existing prison. Mr. Hancock 
said contractors can only get in the prison when the prison wants to let 
him in, even though he may be seperated fran the main population. 
Mr. Hancock said state work is m:::>re expensive because of state and federal 
stnadards which must be ment. 

77-4: Sierra Develop:nental Center, Reno 

Fer project details see page 781 of the Executive Budget. 

Senator Lamb asked hCM much land do we CMn on Jones arrl Charleston Streets 
in Las Vegas? 

Mr. Hancock said the state CMnes 80 acres and the Carmunity College CMnes 
another 80 acres. 

Senator Lamb asked Mr. Hancock if any thoughts had been put together 
alxmt putting them all on the same piece of land. 

Mr. Hancock said in Las Vegas, the general idea was that since they have 
a long tenn lease on that welfare building they wanted to centeralize 
all the hurnan resources activities on that location. This is a location 
the human resources people felt was m:::>re desirable then Charleston and Jones 
as far as the cliental they were trying to serve. 

Senator Lamb asked if there would be a time when there wouldn't be enough 
land in the area. 

Mr. Hancock said probably at that stage in time the cliental will be in 
another area and they will rrove. 

Assembl yrna.n Hickey asked hCM does one detennine 'the location of: the site. 

Mr. Hancock said it was determined by the Department of Human Resources 
within a prirneter of an area of Las Vegas where they thought m:::>st of the 
cliental came fran. They decided to centerlize m:::>st of their activities. 
The•· 1973. session appropriated the m:::>ney to purchase the land and 
to build a state CMned building. Since then, they have entered into 
a lease agreement for a fcx:x:l s~ building to the south of the state CMned 
facility. 

77-6: Replacement of National Guard A.rm:>ry, Parking Lot 

For project details see page 781 of the Executive Budget. 

Senator Echols asked what the purpose of putting an access in front of 
the no parking area. 

Dick Baker said just to get out of the main entrance door,there is no 
way of getting at the main entrance by car. This will get them off Eastern 
Avenue so you don't tie up traffic. 

Mr. Flangas said public safety is of utm::>st importance. This is a classic 
example of one that canes under that heading. 

Senator Hilbrecht asked where do they plan on storing this heavy:-,, equip:nent. 

Mr. Baker said they have a very large area nCM that belongs to the 
National Guard. It is just a matter of shifting their vehicles that they 
rK:M store there to other areas on that side. 

dmayabb
WMfin

dmayabb
Text Box
January 24, 1977



- -
SENA'IE FINANCE COl\MITI'EE 
MINUI'ES OF MEETING 

PAGE 7 

• -
77-7: Improvements to the State Museum, Carson City, Nevada 

For project details see page 781 of the Executive Budget. 

• 

Assemblyman Glover asked if the warehouse is on state o.vned property. 

Mr. Hancock said the property is o.vned by the State Highway Departrrent. 

Assemblyman Glover asked if we are mandated by any law to put in the wheel 
chair ramps? 

Mr. Hancock said no, the state has a law that was passed in 1973-75 saying 
that all public buildings custanarily used by the public, has to have 
ramp access, telephone and drinking fountains that are accessible and usable 
by handicapped persons. 

Assemblyman Serpa asked if the design fees are architecture fees as well. 
Mr. Hancock said yes. 

Assemblyman Serpa asked if there wasn't anyone that can make these $llall 
designs without going to an outside architect. Mr. Serpa said he didn't 
knav what it would involve but he didn't think that a design of parking 
lo.t'.: would cost anywhere near $5,000. 

Mr. Hancock said the State Building Works Board has a staff of architects, 
engineers and building inspectors who do approximately~ design projects 
per rronth. The reason for the parking lot is we don't have anybody in 
Las Vegas where we need survey infonna.tion. 

Assemblyman Brookman asked if the recarmerrlation for the new bathroa:n 
facilities were canplete and in use at the museum • 
.Mr. Hancock said yes. 

77-8: P..e-Roof Historical Society Building, Reno 

For project details see page 781 of the Executive Budget. 

Assemblyman Glover asked who designed the Historical Society building? 

Mr. Hancock said Rayman and Hill,und.er the jurisdiction of his office. 

Assemblyman Brookman asked if the flashing on the roof was bad in the beginning. 

Mr. Hancock said there are,problems .. ·: .·When it rains, the water builds up 
an ice pack on the flashing and gutter systems. When it rrel ts and re-
freezes, the water is shoved up under the flashing and canes dCMil inside 
the wall. 

77-9: f:iite Clearance and Fencing, State Administrative Canplex, Las Vegas 

For project details see page 781 of the Executive Budget. 

Assenblyman Brookman asked hav much it would cost to put a corrigated top 
while fencing it and to move sane of the cars over and get them out of the 
elements • 

. r..rr-. Hancock said he would look in to it and tell her later. 

77-19: Fencing, Childrens Hane, Carson City, Nevada 

For project details see page 781 of the Executive Budget. 

Assemblyman Glover asked if they were planning on removing the last cottage. 

Mr. Hancock said there is enough clearance and the cottage does not have 
to be ranoved. 

dmayabb
WMfin

dmayabb
Text Box
January 24, 1977



- -
SENATE FINANCE CCM-1I'ITEE 
MINUTES OF MEETING 

PAGE 8 

• • 
77-11: Entrance Security, State Canputer Facility, carson City, Nevada 

For project details see page 781 of the Executive Budget. 

77-12: Water Tank and Treatment System,·.State Water System, Carson City 

For project details see page 781 of the Executive Budget. 

Mr. Baker said the cost of the tank is approximately $500,000. 

Senator Lamb asked if the city had a treatment plan. 

Mr. Hancock said they have their CM.11 system which is treated. 

Senator Lamb said theoretically, we are going to be treating the city water. 
Do we sell them treated water or untreated water. 

Mr. Barrett said he was not responsible for Marlette Lake. 

Mr. Hancock said we put the state water into their system belCM the 
treatment facility. 

Senator Wilson asked if this rel.ates, to ... the Garson G::ity~:system. Does 
carson City buy water fran Marlette Lake and then do they inturn treat, 
store and distribute the water? 

Mr. Hancock said the state takes it out of Marlette Lake and puts it 
into the state facilities, selling it impure. They sell a certain amount 
to the city. 

Mr. Barrett said Mr. Hancock was correct. The states water fran Marlette 
Lake cares fran the reservoir, fran the reservoir it is treated for the 
state system. It can also go into the city system if they are buying 
water fran us at that time. 

Mr. Hancock said they only buy water to supplenent their peak demands. 

Assanblyrnan Glover asked wnat:: the cost: :would of been if this was done last year? 

Mr. Hancock said about $300,000 at one time and was not sure arout the 
present cost. 

77-13: 

For project details see page 781 of the Executive Budget. 

'Tir.eatmeilt·,systans • consisting , .of vacuum, .oleaners, .settlipg) ponds·, :digesters 
and sludge.. beds- are required on .the Washoe Rearing Ponds, Spring Creek 
Hatchery and Gallagher Hatchery to canply with Environrrental Protection 
Agency Standards. 

77-14: Miscellaneous Improvements, Mental Health Institute, Sparks 

For project details see page 781 of the Executive Budget. 

Senator Lamb asked what the fann building was used for. 
Mr. Baker said it was used as a dairy fann but has been done away with. 
'l'hey lease pasture and the prison provides the milk out of the state dairy. 

77-17: Rehabilitate Buildings, Youth Training Center, Elko 

For project details see page 784 of the Executive Budget. 

dmayabb
WMfin

dmayabb
Text Box
January 24, 1977



-
SENATE FINANCE Ca1MITI'EE 
MINUI'FS OF MEETING 

PAGE 9 

• - • 
77-18: Rem:xiel Drivers License Area, Department of M:>tor Vehicles Building, 

Carson City, Nevada 

For project details see page 785 of the Executive Budget. 

77-20: Rem:xiel Buildings and Grounds Building for State Archives, 
Capitol Canplex 

For project details see page 785 of the Executive Budget. 

77-22: Additional Program Facilities - Jean Prison 

For project details see page 786 of the Executive Budget. 

77-23: Highway Patrol office, Jean 

For project details see page 786 of the Executive Budget. 

Senator Hilbrecht asked why a motor carrier facility couldn't be usoo ,near Jean. 

Mr. Hancock said the motor carrier had an installation along the freeway 
at one time but is D.CM closed dCMn. 

Senator Hilbrecht asked if it could be used or revitalized. 

Mr. Hancock said as far as he knew it isn't around any longer. 

77-24: State Office Building, Battle M:>untain 

For project details see page 786 of the Executive Budget. 

Senator Young asked if it cost $30,000 for the land in Battle Mountain. 

Mr. Hancock said there has not been an appraisal. There are t¼O appraisals 
and we never pay more than the highest appraisal. 

Senator Hilbrecht said very recently the property was litigated for the 
freeway acquisition. Judge Young entered an order on this. 

Mr. Flangas said we do not like to spend money on engineering or appraisals 
unless it is authorized by the legislatures. 

Senator Lamb said we don't like to see you take sane $30,000 and put it 
in a project if it is not needed. 

Mr. Flangas said we can never get in trouble making reversions. 

77-27: State Office Building, Elko 

For project details see page 787 of the Executive Budget. 

Assemblyman Glover said not all state agencies in Elko will go into this 
building. He said there was sane talk of Eroployroont Security going to lease 
a building. 

Assemblyman Glover thought there might be a problan because of a long tenn 
lease that saneone has tied themself into. 

77-28: M3.intance and Construction Shop Division of Forestry, Reno 

For project details see page 787 6£:the· Execut.ive~.iBudget. 

,''.l) '' ·-

dmayabb
WMfin

dmayabb
Text Box
January 24, 1977



- -
SENA'IE FINANCE ~TI'EE 
MINUTES OF MEETING 

PAGE 10 

• - • 
Mr. Hancock said one point on that particular project is that there has 
been discussion that the Highway Department might have to cond6ll.e the 
existing forestry operation to get a road, necessary for the M.G.M. 
developnent. We were advised by the Highway Department that they have 
dropped futher consideration. If the carmittee approves this project, 
there is no reason why it should not be built in this state and time. 

Senator Wilson said it is close to the Highway Department. Why isn't it 
possible to construct and maintain trucks at the highway facility which 
does the same thing. He stated it would be rrore econanical and didn't 
know why there should be a seperate building to maintain this. 

77-29: Lee Canyon Guard Station Division of Forestry, Mt. Charleston 

For project description see page 787 of the Executive Budget. 

Assemblyman Hickey said he is familiar with the Mt. Charleston area. 
There are existing ad~tffr:faciliti:es;. 'I'hey are county o.vned and there 
is a county o.vned garage. 

77-30: Office Building Addition, Parks, Forestry and Fish and Game. 
Las Vegas 

For project description see page 787 of the Executive Budget. 

Senator Lamb asked if the state originally built the Fish and Game building. 
Mr. Hancock said yes. 

77-31: Plant t1clterials Center, Tule Springs, Clark County 

For project description see page 788 of the Executive Budget. 

Senator Hilbrecht asked Mr. Hancock to describe the design of the Solar Green 
House. 

Mr. Hancock said the greenhouse has solar and heating capabilities. One 
wall is used as a reflector. 

77-34: ~viation .Amory, National Guard, Stead 
•, - • - • ,..,.,,:--"'!,••n ,"' J'; ' \" 

For project description see page 789 of the Executive Budget. 

Senator Young asked if there was any water. 
Mr. Hancock said no, a well was drilled and there is a septic tank • 

77-35: .Amory National Guard, North Las Vegas 

Senator Hilbrecht asked if this would replace the existing facilities 
at east Sahara Avenue. 
Mr. Baker said no. 

73-36: National Guard Sparks 

For project description see page 790 of the Executive Budget. 

Mr. Hancock said the existing facility is too small and there is no security 
for amunition. 

Senator Wilson asked if the facility at Stead could be enlarged. 

Mr. Baker said the existing building is an old W.W.II building, and 
is not secure which is the prime reason for rroving it. 

Senator Hilbrecht asked why there is such high_ priorities for arrrories. 

dmayabb
WMfin

dmayabb
Text Box
January 24, 1977



.. -
SENA'IE FINANCE CCMIT'ITEE 
MINUI'ES OF MEETING 

PAGE 11 

• • 
Mr. Flangas said to consolidate and locate state activities in as few 
places as we can. 

Senator Wilson .asked' if any agencies .wbtilld 1 be testifying. ·in .;supp::rrt 
of these various projects. 

Mr. Mello said there has been work done with sub-ccmni tties. We serrl 
people out in the field to look at these programs. When the proper agency 
crm2s in and we have the Capital Improvement Programs, we then ask 
them question. 

77-37: Anrory in Elko 

For project description see page 790 of the Executive Budget. 

77-38: Organizational Maintenance Shop, National Guard, Carson City 

For project description see page 790 of the Executive Budget. 

77-39: Warehouse and Ga.rage,Division of Forestry, Elko 

For project description see page 790 of the Executive Budget. 

77-42: Fish Brood Station, Gallagher Hatchery, Ruby Valley 

For project description see page 792 of the Executive Budget. 

77-44: Rehabilitation of Capitol Building 

For project description see page 791 of the Executive Budget. 

Senator Gibson asked why there is a proposal to go to an election. 

Mr. Barrett said to give the people a choice to voice their opinions. 

Asserrblyman Vergiels asked if the main reason for the renovation of the 
Capitol Building was to make it earthquake proof or to have rrore efficient 
space. 

Mr. Hancock said to preserve the building and in turn make it rrore effective. 
He felt the building should be saved. 

Mr. Hancock said a major functional change is to close off the north and 
south ends. 

Mr. Flgµ-igasc:si3.i4. :th.,~e is unaminous approval to restore the building. 
Whether it could or could not stand an earthquake, the state ITU.1st think 
of public safety. 

Senator Lamb said there are said should it be done with application 1:x:mds 
ore general fund rroney and should it be done nCM. 

Senator Gibson asked if general obligation l:x:mds could be use without going 
to vote. 

Senator Lamb said if we continue with S.B. lll, we ITU.1st amend it before we 
start. 

Assemblyman Mello asked Mr. Hancock if he had talked with the people 
that are housed in the Capitol Building. He asked if they could continue 
work in the present facility. 

Senator Lamb asked what would happen to the people during the renovation. 

Mr. Hancock said there would be a rented facility. 
Partof the cost under miscellaneous is $314,000 for rent in other facilities. 

dmayabb
WMfin

dmayabb
Text Box
January 24, 1977



- -
SENA'IE FINANCE CCM-1ITI'EE 
MINUI'ES OF MEETING 

PAGE 12 

• • 
Assemblyman Mello said as a state grews, naturally the duties of the people 
housed should also grew. If the renovation goes as planned, is there going 
to be sufficient space to do the v.Urk. If not,what we are looking at 
is restoring the building and later building another building sanewhere else. 

Mr. Hancock said we have a 25% expansion capability. 

Mr. Mello said the Secretary of State is crCM'.ied and cluttered. 
Mr. Hancock said space has been allowed for him. 

Assemblyman Vergiels said if you change the building to a great degree, you 
will loose the historical nature of it and the value. 

Senator Gibson said we should make a decision on it new. 

Senator Hilbrecht asked if it was possible to make it safe. 
Mr. Hancock said yes we could. 

Senator Wilson asked hew much is the total structural cost and improvement. 

Mr. Hancock said a figure v.Uuld be given later. 

Senator Young asked if the 25% expansion included the upstairs chamber. 
Mr. Hancock said yes. The chamber would merely be restored as a museum. 
It would cost around $300,000 to $400,000 to expand. the capitol and 
make it rrore efficient for agency use. 

Senator Lamb asked Mr.Hancock to discuss with him the matters on the agenda. 

Mr. Hancock said there is a request fran the National Guard to expand. 
a helicopter facility fran $500,000 federal grant to $1,000,500 grant. 
We would like the approval of the Interim Finance Ccmnittee. 

There is need for assistance in developing a major recreational canplex 
in the Sparks Mental Health Institution with rroney derived fran the sale of land. 

'J:\-x:) grants fran LEM to provide close circuit T.V. security in the Suprere 
Court building. 

Senator Lamb thanked .Mr. Hancock for caning. He asked Mr. Hancock to - t. 
put this in writing to the two ccmnitties. 

The meeting adjourned at 10:00 a.m. 

RESPOCTFULLY SUBMITIED: 

!~V~ 
HENRI VALENTA, SECRETARY 

APPOOVED: 

dmayabb
WMfin

dmayabb
Text Box
January 24, 1977




